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LT WC
.E:EIiY "0ld Narragansett Church" was built in 1707 at "the Platform" on

Tower Hill in the town of Narragansett and moved in 1800, when that small
hill gebttlement dispersed, to its present location in the village of
Wickford. It is now sited at the end of a lane running up and west from
the village's Main Street, from which it is plainly visible; and the
church to-day has a walk-way approach known as "Greene Way" because its
making (which includes stepping-stones inscribed with the names of
parsons and persons prominent in the church's history) was the gift of
the Greene family, always and still prominent in southern Rhode Islands
this walk-way is a creation as recent as the 1960's. Burying-grounds are
near the church, but the grave markers have been rearranged in ways which
do not always relate them to the buried persons.

The church building itself is a simple, well-proportioned, two-
and-a-half-story, timber-framed structure, ® vered with clapboarding and
capped with a gable roof. In spite of Anglican use, the church follows
the overall plan of the rectangular Puritan meeting-house, with pulpit
and reading-desk placed on the long (northern) wall opposite the en-
trance doorway. Pews are square and generally simply panelled; a few
are finished with horizontal sheathing. As in earlier churches, the
sturdy interior framework is exposed; but the ceiling is plastered and
barrel-vaulted, a treatment common in baroque public buildings in Eng-
land. An abbreviated chancel housing the altar is placed unobtrusively
between the two lower windows of the easbtern wall. A rude gallery
added in 1723, horizontally-sheathed and supported on six Doric columns,
runs on three sides--west, south and east--of the church auditorium at
segond-story level. The stairway to the pulpit is typical of the early
1700's, with its square-based banisters, ball finials and torus-molding
handrail. Typical for that period also is the wine-glass pulpit. Both
stairway and pulpit were designed by Norman Isham to duplicate the ori-
ginal furnishings when the churct was restored in the 1920's.

On the exterior "01d Narragansett Church" displays a naive use of
classic design, an early example of the architectural influence of late
seventeenth-century Endlish work partly introduced, in Rhode Island. by
the Church of England. Characteristic is the symmetrical disposition
of openings in the building. On the south front, windows--two on either
side--flank the central doorway. At second-story level, four windows
just below the roofline are evenly spaced across the elevation. The
disposition of windows on the north side is similar. Each end has two

- windows per stary, with a small circular window centered under the peak

" of the roof. Another sign of the new architectural influence is the |
use of details or classic derivation: the Georgian rounded heads and
le ystones of the windows; the classic moldings forming the cornice; and

the doorway with its flanking pilasters, highly-arched broken segmental
pediment whose principal curved sections are terminated with quaintly-

carved Jacobean-looking rosettes.
(See Contimuation Sheet 1,)

338

SNOITL1ONYLSNI



INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
(] Pre-Columbian! - (O 16th Century 18th Century (] 20th Century
] 15th Century (3 "17th Century ' (] 19th Century

'SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known) 1 (0

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Abor iginal (J_ Education O Polit}col ' (] Urban Planning

(O Prehistoric (O] Engineering - @ Religion/Phi- \ L I fy)

=) Historie - . [} Industry . |65°phy"r . : g :

’ ‘: ’Ag[iét;ift;‘n e [] 4nvention - [] Science i . Q, N

(X Architecture ] Landscape [ Sculpture N SLIVLY - \,)\
O Art Architecture [ Social/Human- / | >
[0 Commerce (O] Literature itarion _ J 1'973
[ Communications ] Military [ Theater —Nn‘rro -
D Conservation [J Music (] Transportation ,STER

STATEMENT OF.SI'GNIFICANCE W
‘ u0ld Narfagdhsett Church" is significant both for its historical

asgsociations and for its architecture. One of the oldest Episcopalian
churches in the country, it was the second Anglican church to be es-
tablished in Rhode Island: The ministry to Narragansett was initiated
on a regular basis in 1706 by the Reverend Christopher Bridge, and it
was under his guidance that the church building was erected in 1707.
Queen Anne in that same year presented the new ohurchgsas®a silver
chalice and paten to commemorate its founding. e

The Reverend James MacSparran assumed rectorship of the church,
given the name St. Paul's, in 1721, and admirably filled that position
until his death in 1757. Reverend MacSparran was a man of such force-
ful and generous character, of an eloquence so moving, and of an intel-
lect so keen, that he was known as ™he Dr. Johnson of Narragansett."
Under his rectorship St. Paul's Church and its parsonage became the
center of social and cultural, as well as religious, 1life for the people
of the town.

Narragansett at this time--and continuing through to the years
Jjust preceding the Revolutionary War, when various of the Mercantile
Acts began to take their toll on colonial commerce--was a surprisingly
well-to-do and cultured community. Several of the "Narragansett Plan-
ters" possessed libraries of size impressive for the day. The planters
also encouraged the work of painters such as Smibert, and in 1756 Re-
verend MacSparran baptized the future painter Gilbert Stuart in his
church. There was much contact by water with Newport, the cultural
center of Rhode Island in the 1700's, and Bishép Berkeley from "White-
hall" was a frequent visitor in the MacSparran home.

The Reverend Samuel Fayerweather succeeded in 1757 to the rector-
ship after MacSparran's death, but he was removed in 177L for his Tory
sympathies. The church served as an American barracks during the Revo-
lution. No religious services were held in it for a period of twelve
years until Reverend William Smith accepted the rectorship in 1787.
However, Narrangansett had never really recovered from the events lead-
ing up to and including the Revolutidnary War. By 1800 so many members
of the parish had moved away from the Tower Hill area that the few re-

(See Contimuation Sheet 1.)
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The church underwent a rmumber of changes in its long history. The
greatest of these was the addition of a steeple at the western end of the
building in 1811, which blocked #ri. 'the circular window <in the gable peak.
The stairway to the gallery was then replaced by a stairway in the steeple
tower. The steeple collapsed in 1866, but it was not until 1886 that the
doorway from the steeple tower to the gallery was filled in and the stairs
rebuilt, as before, inside the church auditérium. Other changes included
the moving of chancel and altar from their original position on the eastern
wall to a place directly in front of the pulpit, in 1822; the splitting

of the two square pews on either side of the chancel into three narrow pews
each, in 183L; and the replacement of the original reading desk and wine-
glass pulpit by more "modern" oak pieces in 1835.

Norman Morrison Isham restored the church in the 1920's, at which
time he removed the later alterations, restored the circular window (con-
cealed since 1811) and designed, in the form of the old, the present
reading desk and wine-glass pulpit.

8. Significance.

maining vestrymen voted to relocate the church in the village of Wick-
ford, some four miles distant, and it was there moved, drawn by a team
of oxen.

"0ld Narragansett (St. Paul's) Church" was badly in need of repair
by 18L7 and in that year was supplanted by a "new" St. Paul's Church in
Wickford. The old church was closed, unused, and fell into a state of
increasing disrepair. Movements to restore it occurred first in 1885-
1886 (it st a cleaning, a coat of paint, and interior stairs to the m 1-
lery restored) and again in 191li; but it was not until the 1920's that
full-scale restoration was undertaken. Norman Isham, a noted authority
on early American architécture, was appointed to the restoration commit-
tee in 1923. He made a thsmugh investigation of the structurerand its
recards in order to determine its original appearance. His measured
drawings etc. are in the collections of the Rhode Island Historical
Society but not at the moment available.

His exterior restoration included re-clapboarding of the front
(south) and western sides of the church, re-creatkon of the circular win-
dow under the roof-peak which she steeple had blocked in, work on window
moldings, and re-painting the building in its original shade of white.
Interior restoration included complete replastering; installation of a
period (c. 1700) English altar rail at the east end and removal of the
183L oak rail at the north; and redesigning of the lectern, pulpit and
pulpit stairway in conformance with descriptions in early church records.

(See Continuation Sheet 2.)
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8. Significance.

A classical reredos, designed by Newport artist John Howard Benson, was
placed behind the altar in 1930. The most recent addition to the church's
interior restoration was the return of the original communion table in
1955, a gift from the Casey family of Saunderstown-Narragansett.

This building is one remarkable both for its history and for its
architectural longevity. The story of its disrepair and subsequent re-
storation came to a happy end because of the thoroughly-researched and
finely-executed work of Norman Isham. Today, "Old Narragansett Church'"

gives the visitor the impression of a quiet place /\touched by either
the hands of time or those of the restorer. barely
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